ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVWM TTEE
April 11, 2013
9:07 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Fred Dyson, Chair

Senator Cathy G essel, Vice Chair
Senat or John Coghi | |

Senator Bill W el echowski

VEMBERS ABSENT
Senator Bert Stednman
COWMM TTEE CALENDAR

COWM TTEE SUBSTI TUTE FOR HOUSE BI LL NO 104(2D JUD)

"An Act relating to election practices and procedures; relating
to the reporting of election canmpaign contributions and
expenditures; relating to identification requirenments for a
comuni cation paid for by a political party; relating to public
records; relating to the election of an advisory school board in
a regional educational attendance area; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 104(2D JUD) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 104

SHORT TI TLE: ELECTI ON PROCEDURES; REAA ADVI SCRY BOARDS
SPONSOR(s) : RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNOR

02/ 06/ 13 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 06/ 13 (H STA, JUD

02/ 19/ 13 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

02/ 19/ 13 (H Moved CSHB 104(STA) Qut of Commttee

02/ 19/ 13 (H M NUTE( STA)

02/ 20/ 13 (H STA RPT CS(STA) NT 5DP 2NR

02/ 20/ 13 (H DP: HUGHES, | SAACSON, GATTIS, KREI SS-
TOWKI NS, LYNN

02/ 20/ 13 (H NR. M LLETT, KELLER

02/ 27/ 13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

02/ 27/ 13 (H Heard & Held

02/ 27/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- April 11, 2013



03/ 04/ 13 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 04/ 13 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/11/13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/11/13 (H Heard & Held

03/11/13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 15/ 13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 15/ 13 (H Moved CSHB 104(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 15/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 18/ 13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

03/ 18/ 13 (H Moved CSHB 104(JUD) Qut of Conmittee

03/ 18/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

03/ 20/ 13 (H JUD RPT CS(JUD) NT 6DP 1AM

03/ 20/ 13 (H DP: MLLETT, PRUTT, FOSTER  LEDQUX,
LYNN, KELLER

03/ 20/ 13 (H AM  GRUENBERG

03/ 22/ 13 (H RETURNED TO JUD COW TTEE

04/ 05/ 13 (H) JUD AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 120

04/ 05/ 13 (H Moved CSHB 104(2d JUD) Qut of Committee

04/ 05/ 13 (H) M NUTE( JUD)

04/ 08/ 13 (H) JUD RPT CS(2D JUD) NT 4DP 1AM

04/ 08/ 13 (H DP: PRU TT, FOSTER, LEDOUX, LYNN

04/ 08/ 13 (H) AM GRUENBERG

04/ 08/ 13 (H TRANSM TTED TO (S)

04/ 08/ 13 (H VERSI ON:  CSHB 104(2D JUD)

04/ 09/ 13 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

04/ 09/ 13 (S) STA

04/ 11/ 13 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

GAI L FENUVAI, Director

D vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented information related to HB 104.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI S, Executive Director

Al aska Public Ofices Conm ssion (APQOC)

Department of Adm nistrations

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 104.

LI BBY BAKALAR, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Labor and State Affairs Section

Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions related to HB 104.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- April 11, 2013



ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:07: 20 AM

CHAIR FRED DYSON called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:07 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Coghill, G essel, and Chair Dyson.

HB 104- ELECTI ON PROCEDURES; REAA ADVI SORY BQARDS

CHAI R DYSON announced that the business before the conmttee
woul d be HB 104. He noted that the commttee previously heard
the Senate version of the bill and many changes were made from
that version. [CSHB 104 (2D JUD) was before the conmmttee.]

GAIL FENUMAI, Director, Division of Elections, Ofice of the
Li eutenant Governor, presented information related to HB 104.
She related that many changes were nmade to the conpanion bill SB
44, mainly in the House Judiciary Commttee.

M5. FENUMAI explained that the first change is in Section 3,
which requires poll watchers to be United States citizens,
versus registered voters. Section 4 was anended to allow
candi dates to appoint poll watchers.

CHAI R DYSON asked if the version before the conmttee is |I.

M5. FENUVAI said yes. She continued to explain that current
statute only allows the parties to appoint poll watchers.
Section 5 was anended to require that nenbers of the State
Revi ew Board be United States citizens. Section 6 is an Al aska
Public Ofices Comm ssion (APOC) anendnent, which requires new
party candidates to file appropriate APOC reports on the sane
timeline as party candidates. Sections 7 - 9 anmend the APCC
statutes rel ated to identification requirenents for
comuni cations paid for by a political party. The top three
donors nust be |i sted.

CHAI R DYSON asked M. Dauphinais to stand by to answer questions
rel ated to APCC.

9:11: 07 AM

M5. FENUMAI continued with the change in Section 11, which was
anended to allow a person requesting an advisory opinion from
APCC to have their nanme redacted if requested. Section 14 was
anended to allow ballots postmarked from overseas to be received
10 days following the primary el ection and 15 days follow ng the
general election. Sections 16 - 21 were added to include a

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- April 11, 2013



special run-off election to fill a vacancy in the U S. Senate,
if the candidate did not receive at |east 50 percent of the
vot e.

CHAI R DYSON t hought that m ght cause some tim ng problens.

M5. FENUMAI said it would be tight, but doable. She related that
Section 22 was anended to nove the primary election from the
second Tuesday to the third Tuesday. Section 31 is related to a
special run-off election. Sections 32 - 39 were anended to
include |anguage related to a special run-off election. She
expl ai ned that Section 41 adds "special run-off election"” to the
current definition of a federal election. Section 44 deletes the
repeal of a statute that said all ballots had to be in by the
15t h day.

9:13: 25 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked Ms. Fenumai if the division sees any problenms
wi th the changes.

M5. FENUMAI replied that the division can work with the changes.

PAUL DAUPHI NAI'S, Executive Director, Al aska Public Ofices
Comm ssion (APOC), Departnment of Administrations, offered to
answer questions related to HB 104.

SENATOR COCGHI LL asked about Section 8, the requirenent for a
"paid for by" advertising statenent. He said that he thought the
advertisement would only have to say "paid for by x party" and
not have to list the donors.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S said that is correct.

SENATOR COGHI LL i nquired about the reason behind the request for
confidentiality.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said it was an anmendnment put forth by a nenber of
t he House. He noted that APOC has no problemwth it.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI j oi ned the neeting.

9:15: 37 AM

CHAIR DYSON surmsed it was ainmed at soneone who nakes an
accusation of inpropriety against a candidate a few days before
the election and there is no time for a response or an APCC
ruling.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- April 11, 2013



MR. DAUPHI NAI S replied he assunmes that is correct.

SENATOR COGHILL said it |looks like the person who is requesting
the information is exenpt from having their nane put forward
not the candi date.

CHAI R DYSON agr eed.

MR. DAUPHI NAI'S explained that a third party cannot request an
advi sory opinion. The person who requests the advisory opinion
bears the association of the request.

SENATOR COGHI LL sai d he under st ood.

CHAI R DYSON asked if there is a difference between an advisory
opi nion and an accusation of inpropriety.

MR. DAUPHI NAI' S said yes. An advisory opinion is a formal process
for APOC covered under AS 15.13 and an accusation would nore
than likely come fromthe public and is not an APOC term

9:18: 23 AM

CHAI R DYSON gave an exanple of a citizen making an accusation
that a candidate is acting in an unethical manner. He asked how
APCC deals with that.

MR. DAUPHI NAI' S said that the situation posed is not an advisory
opi ni on.

CHAI R DYSON agr eed.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS gave an exanple of an advisory opinion; a
candi date requests APOC s fornmal opinion about whether they can
bring their canpaign manager along in their car to an event. He
said Chair Dyson's exanple may or may not be |ooked at by APOC
It nust be contrary to a statute or regulation that falls under
an APCC aegis. He clarified that APOC is limted by statute as
to howlong it has to deliver an advisory opinion.

CHAIR DYSON said it came up the in the last election cycle. He
expl ai ned that a candi date asked APOC how to handle a situation

was given advice which they followed, then APOC nmade a deci sion
that what they did was incorrect, and then it was made public
that the candidate violated the filing requirenents.

9:22:10 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- April 11, 2013



MR. DAUPHI NAI S expl ained that with advisory opinion requests, if
the candidate follows advice given by APOCC staff, he/she is
shi el ded from w ong doi ng.

CHAI R DYSON asked if it nmust be in witing.
MR. DAUPHI NAI S answered yes.

CHAIR DYSON gave an exanple of advice given with no witten
record.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said he msunderstood. He called that exanple
i nformal advice, of which APOC gives very little unless it is
clear cut, like a due date. Al other advice nust be requested
in witing.

CHAI R DYSON asked how | ong the turnaround is.
MR. DAUPHI NAI S said 7 cal endar days.

9:24:56 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about Sections 7, 8, and 9; if
political parties nust list their top three contri butors.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS replied that APOC has interpreted it that way,
but recognizes the difficulty in picking just three.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked how nmuch a person or an organi zation
can contribute to a political party.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said a group, such as a political action
conmittee or a wunion, can contribute up to $1,000 in the
aggregate per year to a political party.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what the nmaxi mum contri bution is.

MR. DAUPHI NAIS said an individual can contribute up to $5,000
per year.

9:26: 57 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked about the special elections changes
in Sections 30 and 31.

M5. FENUMAI expl ained that Section 30 addresses provisions for a
special election for Congress and AS 15.40.142 is a new section
that would require a special run-off election should no
candi date receive at |east 50 percent of the vote.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- April 11, 2013



CHAI R DYSON asked if the top two candidates would have a run-
of f.

M5. FENUMAI said yes, regardl ess of party.
SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked who of fered that change.

M5. FENUMAI said it was an anendnent nade by a commttee nenber
i n House Judicary.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI gave an exanpl e.

M5. FENUMAI said the special election would be the primary and
only if a candidate does not receive at |east 50 percent of the
vote woul d there be a special run-off.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI said there is no primary.
V5. FENUMAI agr eed.

9:29:46 AM
CHAIR DYSON pointed out that the primary election is for
parties.

M5. FENUMAI said that is correct. She said she was conparing a
special election for Congress followed by the need for a special
run-off to a primary and general el ection.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI gave an exanple. He noted the change does
not inpact el ections el sewhere.

M5. FENUMAI agreed that it only applies to filing a vacancy in
Congr ess.

9: 30: 53 AM
CHAI R DYSON asked if this is a change.

M5. FENUMVAI said the only provision that changed is the one that
applies if no candidate receives at least 50 percent of the
vot e.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if the top vote getter currently
W ns.

M5. FENUMAI said yes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- April 11, 2013



CHAI R DYSON hypothesized a situation where a candidate wins a
primary and needs to be replaced for sonme reason post primary.

M5. FENUMAI related that the process is that the candidate's
political party wuld replace the <candidate via a party
petition.

CHAI R DYSON asked how far in advance of the general election
t hat process can work.

M5. FENUMAI said that HB 104 states that it can occur 64 days
before the general el ection.

CHAIR DYSON said if it is 10 days before, then the ballots go
out as usual .

M5. FENUMAI noted that the current statute would not help that
situation. She said she assumes the governor would take
nom nations fromthe party in order to fill the vacancy.

9:33: 30 AM

LI BBY BAKALAR, Assistant Attorney General, Gvil D vision, Labor
and State Affairs Section, Departnent of Law, offered to
research the issue and follow up with the commttee.

CHAI R DYSON t hanked M. Dauphinais for his work.

9:35:18 AM
SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked why the number of days changes from
48 to 52 days and from 48 to 64 days in Sections 23 - 28.

M5. FENUMAI replied that it is to allowtinme for the ballots to
be printed and nail ed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked about the change from 48 to 64 days
in Section 26 for the same thing.

M5. FENUMAI said it was for the general election.

9: 36: 30 AM

CHAI R DYSON noted that the first part of HB 104 was heard during
the hearing of SB 44. He said the division does not have a
probl emw th the House version.

SENATOR COGHILL pointed out that the primary was noved to the
third week, which necessitated date changes.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- April 11, 2013



M5. FENUMAI agr eed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he was trying to absorb the change of
not having to report a candidate's top three donors. He did not
see it as being in the state's best interest.

9:38: 00 AM

SENATOR d ESSEL t hought the changes anplify the amount of "paid
for by" information to be reported. She opined that the specia
el ection tinmefrane is beneficial.

M5. FENUMVAI suggested that the changes to the APOC statutes
related to canpaign finance reporting levels the playing field
for political party candi dates and no party candi dates.

SENATOR G ESSEL agreed that "paid for by" falls under APQCC,

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he was referring to Sections 7, 8, and
9 where political parties don't have to reveal their top three
donors.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S agreed that Senator Wel echowski has a point, in
that, wth the party not providing a list of three top
contributors, there is not as nuch information going out.

However, because of the Ilimtations on contributions from
i ndi viduals and groups, many contribute the maximum all owed.
Were there are nore than three people at the level, it is hard

to decide which three to choose.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI opined that the public likes the idea that
they are getting sone feel for who is funding canpaigns. He
expressed a desire to keep that information in statute.

9:40: 52 AM
MR. DAUPHI NAI S said it was the |egislature's purview

SENATOR COGHI LL said he understood both sides. He opined that
the real issue is about special groups and their top donor |ist.

9:41: 54 AM
SENATOR G ESSEL said she is also okay with the change because
the contribution |evel is higher at $5, 000.

SENATOR W ELECHOABKI pointed out that it is $5,000 for an
i ndi vi dual .

CHAIR DYSON said a group is limted to $1, 000.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- April 11, 2013



SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI concluded it was a good t hing.

SENATOR COGHI LL asked if parties are required to list their
donors |ike candi dates do.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S said that is correct.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if donors are on the APOC cycle for
listing donors.

MR. DAUPHI NAI S sai d yes.

9:43: 43 AM

M5. BAKALAR returned to the question about what would happen to
a candidate who was elected and then died before taking office.
She stated that another person woul d be appointed.

SENATOR G ESSEL noved to report CS for HB 104, |abeled 28-
GH1983\ I, from commttee with individual recomendations and
attached zero fiscal note.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said he did not believe the bill should be
nmoved so qui ckly, but he woul dn't object.

CHAI R DYSON pointed out that there was a |lot of discussion on
t he House si de.

There being no objection, CSHB 104(2D JUD) was reported fromthe
Senate State Affairs Standing Conmttee.

CHAI R DYSON thanked the staff and commttee nenbers for their
wor K.

9:45: 46 AM

There being no further business to cone before the conmttee
Chair Dyson adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Conmittee at 9:45 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- April 11, 2013



